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2 May 1975 

MEl>tOR.r\NDUM FOR: Deputy Chief. Operations Staf~ 

SUD_JECT Reviet" of Agency Holdings regarding: 
Photograph of Unidentifie:d Iniiividual 
i~\ Mex-ico City published· by the 
Warrcri Commission - .-

Letter ·dated 15 ~pril 1975 by 
Mr. ·oavid ~i. Belin, Executive Director 
of the Commission on CIA' l\ctivihes 
within the .Unit.:!d Sta'fea, to 
Mr·~ E •. Heni:y Nnoche (copy c-.ttached to­
accompanying report) -

1. This is further to, ar.d in completion of, m:~: 
inter:m memorandum.of a ·few weeks ago. 

·2. The attachment is a detailed review in .n.arr.ltive, 
chronological order - together with appropriate conuuent·­
ary - of our oe:c.tensive holdings ·on the OSY.lALD c<1se that 
have a bearing on t~e ~atter of ?hotoqraphs taken by 
Mexico City Station on\_1-. ~~-and'\!_5 October 1503 of an 
Unidentified Individual. As a consequc~ce of a combina­
tion of analytical error, r.~isjudgemcn.t and under t:he 
stress of an-urgent desire to contribut~ to the develop­
me~t of the investigation of the assassln3ticn, a 
cropped versior. of one of the photographs of the 
Unidentified Individual was introduced into the chain of 
evidence in the OS\vA!.D case on 23 Nove:r.ber 1963 by an 
FBI representative in D~llas. The succes~ive vicissi­
tudes which have now made this event a cause celebre· 
right do·.vn to the present moment are dc-.::ail~d in tne 
narrative. 
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J. Th~ att.1chcd t·cport is not intended to be an 
··answer to the •;ensh~t"'>.1.ld/O-'Toolc .:1rbclc wh·fch ~r. Belin 

att.:19hcs to his mc~orandum. {1 have prepared a para1raph­
by-pari!graph rcfutatiun and C0111:11Cht On that ~rticlc, . 
~1\·lch .. 1: be'licvc is· m~:r:c .:~~propri·11tc~y }i.:mdlcd by a ::-cpa"" - ~ .~.. '·'' · 
ra~_ mcmorc1ndum t<;> Nr. a~·lln, .::mQi I w1U prepare thls as ;\: i ' •' 

a lliefuorandi.un ~-t~~~ is_d_?~_i_!~'!.! >'; _ · . · t--• ·: {.,'-:·J.~.•·" 
, ,,.-.-4 :~_ .. ~ .. I ,. 

· 4 •· The point of the·· referenced ·memor~ndum is that· r; -::···'· 
.considcratioli should be _given 'now t:o "wh'ether or' not 'the / ---. 
cnt~·r~:;:~at:ter c.:i.n''bc f~Uy ~:Hsciose~ at this ti:me~·" :this ,.-)I~J--r"" 
subiifis!'li:6n -i's ~cs ig11ed. to make ,it lpos~.ible ~or yQu, th~ 
IG and- others whom you may- desire to consult: to m.i.ke this 

, dcci.sipn •.. The nan:~tive--iriterpic-~'iv~· SUt~unary has been,-· 
. ·Pl.lt;. • togeth.oz: in .such a way that it dfscloscs no c:rptonyms •. 

psei.idqr1yms or c;)ther CIA jilrgon. · ~owcvcr. 'it:s cont-crits c:o · 
well beyond· what has ·been rc'leascd to- the .pub. lie thus far 
in the ,War'ren C6mm~ssion do'cumcr1tati:cin.· This point cust 
,be born(;!· in min~ in making_ a dccisio11 on ~;r. Beiin•s: · 
qUestion.· T(l remove .:tny·question i:n.anybody's mind about 
our good faith --in this matter-, the .narrati.Jle is backed up 
by ·copies of' actual' documentation ·from our files. It · 
seems tome necessary; in reply to Mr. Belin, that he or 
his .~cpresentative review the' documentation t;hat backs .up 
the ·narrative. The documenta'tion has not been ke~:ed into 
the naJ;r~tive presentation, but it follows the chronolo'gi-
cal order of· prese~t.:l.tion from ? October into the lates·t· 
developments iri;_th~ m~tter, and there is .:tn ove):'all· in4ex 

.. -to- fac-ilitate reference to individual items. ['NB: There 
is only oric copy of this" collection; this- is .it:T -. ---

5• ·As noted abo;ve, .o.z:u~ of_ the photographs tak_en in 
Me.xico City on. 4 October 1963 was .introduced. into the 
Warren· Commission publ.ic record. However, it was intro-
duced· irtto tha.t r~cot·d in two cropped versio.ns. The 
Warren Commission and its s·taff were made fully aware in 
the course of their inquiry at Headquarters and in · ' . 
Mexico City of .the origins of the· photograph, the fact 
that we had additional photographs of the same indh~idual 
taken at different tJ.:nes in Mexico City and on the basis 
of full knowledge of these facts reached their own con-
clusions regarding the irrelevance of tho:: photograph to 
OSWALD and the assassination. 

6. In fact, we actually hold twelve different photo­
:qrapb_s of the· Unid~ntified Individual. E.J.ch of these a~ 
reproduced in the collected documentation backin~ up the 
narrative report (see Items 25- 27). Chief, h~ Division, 
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. ha4 indicated in writing to Chi~f, CIOPS, that ho has no· 
objection for Mr. Belin to do whatever is desired with 
these photogicaphc; at this time. It should be. noted that 
Mr. Ft;!pStcrwald in 1971 - 1972 was acti.!i.'llly· shown, by 
Mr. lf~ui;,tpn during. a 'II~ is it to the Agency, two ·of: th,e ' 
twelv~::.photogriiph~, other th.;I_n the on·e _aliea)iy published 
in -the \iarrcn Cofuinis·sicr. report. CI.t is ·these two that 
he 'has publ ishcd· in The New York Rcvic"' ,of Book·s article 
which Mr. Belin at.t.:r<;hes to his memorandum.) 

. ··. '1-. It. seems to .me that whoever makes· a decision on 
·:whether the ciltire matter can ·be fully 'disclo·sed at this . 

time· s_J:loul<f bear ·in" ll}iric;l t}lat a sub:!?id'iary~·_de'cision must 
···~loo. e,_i.e., ,11olhethe'+:to crop.oJ; q'the.rwise fuzz'up 

·. · t.h_e;·_b ip,und of the :photographs or,: a,lt~rhat'ive'ly, to 
pUblis he·entire run of the photographs for the. first 

: · .. ,i.t'~!!~e without.: ·t·ak'i.ng. out· ·t::he t:gtckgrpun'd. ·· Obvlously, none 
... ,· .. :of"tlle~!!- cp.ieshon!~Papp~y to t:he . .passacje.of _this material 
.. to Mr.-- Belin and ·the· ~Rockefeller· ~commission itself. · I 

think ·they ,shO\,ild, see thE! el')t.ire',.docUmen~tation as' it· 
~t~rids._ Pcrl,'iaps -af~er that, 'the ques~ion of what _could 
tie. dis.£:U~scd and· the·.question of "how?'!· and. "how 'much?,. 
coul<;l be -~aken up with_ M,r. BeHn hil!ls:~'lf. .My personal 
recol'ru!i.e~da'tion is tJ:lat.·the more we can say about this 
matter' in a· fully. ·<)pen and final manner, the better of.f 
we wi-ll be ··_as: an Agenc;y. But it i.s my unders tanc;ting 
that,, there ·are- still sensitive aspects Ae:;-iving· _from the 
fa.ct· the photographs 
was rid· as a· consequence 
pUtil on at t . . e wou create additional problems 
at that level in fo.fexico. Also, it should be noted that 
'the 1\inbassador; ··according to· Win Scott's memorandum. to 
J.c. King on· 2~L November 1963 (see Item 8 in the b~ckup 
documentation)',· alleged played a direct role in the 
rdecision to put the pho raphs into .the hands of the FBI 
fn Dallas laterally from the Field. As far as I know, · 
there has not been anything published about this aspect 
at any time in the past nor have we had any diSC~SSi9nS 
with the State Department about that aspect of the matter. 

. ' 

Attachments: 
as stated 
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2 ~lay 1975 

-: · ·The Photo of an-Unidentified- Individual -In the War~n 
Ccmnlssion Repo-rt: A Factu~-1 Cht'Onotagfcal sUrvey· 

REFERWCE: Memorandum by David W. Belin to Mr. E. Harry Knoche, 
. · 15 1\Pri 1 1975 (Attachment' A) 

1. · Refe~eiic~ .mem·c:~randum ~uggests· it wwl~ be 'appropriate t.() 

reconsider full-disclosure at this time of the circumstances ·and factual 

data relative to the SUbject. The purpose of thfs survey. is to pe1111it a 

realistic evaluation of. the suggestion., 

Background · 

2. This examination and sunlllar·y of the record concerns ·a crooped 

photograph considered by -t~e President's C~m1ission on t'he AssassinatiOn 

of Presid~nt Kennedy (hereinafter cited as the .Warren Commission) and 
' . - . ·, ' . 

introduced into ·evidence as Odum Exhibit No. 1. · The photogr,aph 

(togetner with others of. the same individual) originated fran a highly 

of President Ke 
Ccrnmission on the Assassination 

• XX, p. 
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sensitive intelligence opet·Jtion t-dng conducted In Octoi.'Ct· i%3 by the 

CIA agi!lnst the Soviet dli'd Cuban 
~----------------------~ 

Embassies in ·Mexico City. 

. _', \. 
3. Under the extraordinary press of effort to develdp. fnfon~ati'on 

·· ,_ ·on the assassin _dnd· th_e as~assin_ation• copf_es of the ph-ot~t·.wh were 

made avai table by CIA's MexiCo Sta.tion thief on ·the afternoon of 

22 November to the local FBI' repi-eseritative, and later that d.:ty, 

as.sertedly on the decisfon.of the Ambassador, copies were cQnveyec:t'by · 

an· FBI representative by a special flight- carried out by the u.s. rlava1 

Att_ache to the Dallas· office of the ·FBI for possible· use in the ongo.ing. 

investigation .. One photograph. cr..Opped by the ·FBI. was sh0\>'1'1 to. 
' . . ' ' i 

. . I 

··Mrs. Marguerite o·swALD (Lee Harvey OSWALD's mother) fn Dallas'. on the 

evening of 23 November 1963 by -F£H -Agent Bardwell 0. oour-r. 

4. The Warren Commission's report de-scribes the sequenc'J of eve'nts 

at pp. 364-365-and 667 {Attachment B) which ultimately resulted in 

Mrs. Mar.guerite OSWA!.O's allegation that she had been shQ-In a ct·opped 

photo of ·Ja.::k· RUB-Y the day befol"e he murdered her son. (A further 

complication coo1poundfng this erroneous conclusion was the fJct that 

when she had been shQ-In a· copy of the s arne photograph in her appearance 

before the Ccrmlission, it had been cropped by the FBI in Wdshington in 

a s ~ightly different manner.) 

5. No detail in the' Wanen Comnission report f 11ustrates more 

vividly than this one the difficulties that beset simple truth in the 

2 

S E C R E T 

., ... ·. 

.. 

·~ - . ' 

---~------------, 
______ .,.,.,; __ ~ 



' . 

; -

hypoUies is thill holds OSWALD to h.l\~ been "framed M by'~~- use' of ... 

drub1e In his_ acthHy In Mc:dco Cit.y.2. 

6. Although 1ri'no w.\y ~lated to lee t!arvey· OS~,t,tiJ cr his stay in 

l'!e);ico·cH_y"fran the morning of 21 Septern!)er-l96l tot~ 111Qr.ni1'19_of· . 
- , 

2 October 1963. at least one set of photograp~s of t~ t.~.r:iJen'tified man 

cdg-indted during OS_WAlO's. st.11 the1-e. -_It ·fs importar.~~ therefore, to 

an ·understandjng of .the acquisition-and handling oft~ photographs by 

the ~lexica Statfo,n to r~view what the StJti9n ascerta,~ ilnd·dfd with 

the information it developed· .tboot OS~ALO in Mexico Ci~"· t09ether- with 

Headquartet's .sction on that inf01'1:tation. 

7. Fr()lll an credible evidence k.ncwn to .this ~im~ (~Wne. incidentally, 

added since tile exhaustively unique work of the Wcwren Ccmmissi'on)~ 

lee Harvey OSWAlD spent four (4)_ full dzys ilnd t110 (2~ Nrtial days--

about 116 hours in a11--1n Mexico City from about 10:(\.'· <J.m. 27 September 

. ' 

2 This is the thrust of the articl~ "Th~ CIA and th~ ~d~ ~ho Was Not 
Oswald" by Bernard Fenster-walt.l anJ G.:01'9e O'Toole in ~-~~ _!ew York. Review 
of Books, a copy of which is attJche\i to reference (h:::-1c::m:ent t\). 
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-1:?~3 t'o abwt 8:30 d.m. 2 l\:t0t-~·,· 1%3. His pi\JCI? of n~sfl.lcncc '~''s ,, 
f 

Sl";.\ ll cc.mnerd al tr.Jljcler hotf' l. 110t frequented by ''grinuos"··the 

Hotel CCW~1ffl{!rc.io--whcre he was r~lJI)ter-ed under .1lias. [t_haustive and 

detailed lnt'~:4te-.,s ~nd intern~..itlon by ·the Mexican authorlt'les ar'ld-

.. 

thi! FBI. after the assassination. established that In the rccollecdon c;~f 

all hotel persqnn(d -~e left early and returned late each day of hi.s· stay~ . . . . 

8 .. Assuming .:an~ a1lowi"9 for the fact of late arrival and early 

departure • th!lt he slept one-thi ~ of the time of hfs stay (38 or- jg 

hwrs). tllere remain. sane 78 hours of activity to be accounted for: • 

. Overall, CIA:s lnfomiation.can .:u:c0:1nt solely for ver.y brief periods 

during 2.7. 28 September and l October. All cover~ge by CI~ during the 

·entire period was technical.. The Station had no live source (living 

Jgent) coverage -either 

9. It ~hou-ld be noted that OS\~AlO was In no sense ,;under ffwestl­

. gJtion." llone of the facts of hfs defection and stay In the USSR and· 

1-eturn to the U.S., 1959 - 1962,· WP.re known to Mexic.o Strltfon files. 
. -

tiefor:e 10 Octob.er 1963~ when. the bare .bones of his biography were· 

forwarded by Headquarters in response to a Station cab-led report of 

S October which had forwardE!d., on a routine basi.s. what appeared to-be 

a contact by an Jlroerfcan for a visa to Cuba in transit to the USSR. Thfs 

was indicated and deduced from technically acquired infonnatfon on 

1 October. ~tlich was the fit·st and only occasion f n which OSWALD . 

identified himself (par~ially) by true name. 
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J photo of GS~>A:..:J. A c.:trcfu 1 rcvh?~oo ,,~ .. 111 cover.F;P. vol cc Intercept, 

Js wel1 as photo.jr.Jphlc, of both t~ s..-\'iet and Cuban Embassies was 

conducted by the St<J_t loll on 22 and 23 ~•·..'vt"nber 1963 dfter the as~ass ina-

thlf1,·going bJck to llh'lt.ertals fr6m Aug;;st 1963. It is, therefore, firm 

that there was no C lA photo coverage of OSWALD at anv time durin~ hi~. 

Mexico trip or st.ty in Mexico Cfty'. Mcr't'over, although ft had made a 

cabled re9uest on 15 October, the Mexico Station had no photo of OSWALD · 

in its r:ecor"ds, nor did it receive one frcm Headquarters--which dfd not 

have one efther-:-before 22 llovember 1963. 

11. ~this intensive review of voice intercept transcripts· 

by the monitor and other personnel on thoe basis of 'the 1 October fnter­

_cept--whfch had been repor ~ed tci Headqu.trters and disseminated to the· 

interested memtiers. of the fn.tellf!:ience rorJnunity (as an ex-Marine OSWALD 

was a Navy and FBI case under the Delimitations Agreement, and potentially 

of interest to the Department of State)--turned up matches based on · 

content with materials intercepted on .21 and 28 Sept~11ber 1963. These 

matches were repcr.ted to Headquar.ters on 23 November 1963. Analysis 

based on voice ccrnparison. (except for \\tlat could be recalled by the 

monitor--and this was not an insignificant element because of the 

memorably poor Russi an spoke by OSWALD) could not be made because the 

tapes, in accordance with the normal prlctice. had been erased and re-used. 
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coverage wus I)Ot (and nor:mr1l1y _lo:; not) processed in "real tim~." The 

means of i!CQU lsI t l on and the yr;lume of the 1 nfor.lnatl on precludes cinythlfl9 
{' .-· ~ 

. ,." 

but the spot reportln9 of ltem~ judged·by the monitor. to be of more than 

ordinary interest ~and. th~refor<J, noted .·in sumary logs. Ful.l texts of 

selected Items r-equire con.suH!ltlon of the· tatle and either a full tran..: · .. .,.--; 

scripti.on:or ·full trans 1at1on or both. Photo: cover~ge tends to becc:ine 

(!Vai1.lb1e in quantity lots which requires scannfrig and·· s~1ection on a 

rapid and accelerated- basis 1n fwr o~ .five day· ,;peaks." One· of t~e 

"triggers" that normally'- operate~· to focus and accelerate more speedy 

·review and q~porting of.' this ldnd of raw intelligence is·the-ment1on of 

a name. Thfs was precisely what occurred fn .the second of two conversa­

tions Qn 1 October with the Sr.11fet Embassy •. during wh1 ch the speaker. sa~d 

he was "lee OSWALD." It _vtas this ·.f nformati on r~ported by the Stati-on to 
. . 

He,,dquarter·s in Hs first· fndfc.ation on OSWALD on 8 OCtober 1963. 

·13. The Mex 1co Stat 1 on dfd one more thing 1 n Hs 8 October report 

0!'1 lee OSWALD based on fts 1'0etr;L~r voice inte.rcepts: it coupled the 

data with descrfpthre ·information ft had acquired from a s~ns1t1ve 

. collateral source--a photograph of a male in'd.fvfduah apparently an 

American, who was observed entering the Soviet Embassy· on 1 October. 

The Station reported this detai 1 on the 8th. as a matter of coincident 

fact. The Station did not assert or suggest that the· data deduced frcm 

the photo \~as in fact OSWALD. or indeed, was in any way related to OSWALD. 
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14. One addft'l~n.d ciement of back.uround r..tJSt be stipulated now as 

the final pr·ec11nditlon to·unders_tandlng the relevam:e (or irrelev.ance) 

of ·the photo of the· unknown individual placed in the chain of ~vidence 

on 23 .Novemb~r in D.:lllas by FBI Agent bardwell OOUM: whJt was th·e 
. . 

totality' of c-iA Mexh.:o's · .::ovel·age of O~WALD's activity as of the after· 
' . . 

noon of the .. 2Jri:l when all .lvai lable -coverage had been checked? 

15. ihe totality of r-texfc.o Stdtlon coverage on, or reasonably 

inferable to be OSWALD, consisted of five (5) voi.ce intercepts as follows: 

a: 27 September 1963 '(Friday), 1605 hour;s ~lex_fco Cfty t_ime. · 

·snvfa DURAN, a Mexican national, a local enployee of the Cuban 

Embassy, Con~ular· se~tion, a r~ceptfonf~t. speaks wfth an unknown 

male.at the Soviet ~bassy. Silvia-DURAN tells the.man that the 

American cHfzen w.1s. there, the onP. ~1ho wants a visa for Cuba o·n-

his way to the Soviet Union, and he wants to .know wfth whan he was 

talking- there bec.Jusc sl~ (Silvia DUR.AN) liii<t·s~nt hi~- to the-- so~'i'et = 

Embassy- sajdng that H they accepted him and gave him a visa, then 

th~ Cubans (Embassy) wou·ld also give hfm a visa without further 

paper work, only advising_ Immigration in'Cub~. The American, she 

says, wants to know with whcrn he had talked then! because he says 

he was told there would be no problem. The nian in the Soviet 

Embassy says to walt a moment. A different Soviet speaks, and 
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Silvia OU!It.ll explains t11r: ''~"'' ttdn<J to hlm·. This ~Jr. says to 

leave d name ilnd te lephtme 'i'"''hur .wd say-; h~ "'ill c.1ll bJ.ck. 

Si lvl a OURNI gives the te f,:;phone ll-ZB·47 (Cub.\n Consu l..t.te:). 
. . . 

...... _ 
moved and \t'ants to advise th" Soviet Embassy of hi:r change of 

·addres.s so that she can r~~t;lvc .th~ ·sovi{!t fJnt>~ssy's l:lu11P.tin. 

The man says to ca 11 ~OUKitAIII:NKO to give her' new address. then he 
. . . -

~sks the nart)e of the Consul or .. Cultural Attache~ Silvia DURAN says 

.the name 1s Teresa PROENZA ;1nd the 'telep~one· number i.s 14-13-26. 

The man:says thanks. 

b. 27 September 196J {fflday), 1626 hours Mexfco City time. _ 

An uri1dentff1ed male, ~Sovi@t, calls the ·Cuban Consulate. ·asks 

Silvia OURM ff the J\mertton hild been there. Silvia DURAN says he 

is there now. The Soviet ~iiYS the Anerlcan showt.'-i papers fran the 

Consu.late in WJshington, thnt he .wants to go to the Soviet Union 

and be ttiere for a long t.f1111,1 w_lth his wife, who is Russian, but 

the answer has ·not eo~i1u fro.u Wash.i ngton in ,re~p~c~ to. this prob 1 em. 
. ' . - ' .. ~ -

aoo according to this pr(Jt;!1dure it takes four or five months, but 

without hav-ing pennisslon fran the Soviet .Union they should ask, or· 

better said, they cannot h~ue a visa there without asking Washing· 

ton. HQ</ever, ·accm·diny to this man, he shQ</ed a le\.ter indicating 

he.was a member of an Ot'~Jrlllilatlon fn favor of Cuba and that the 

Cubans said that they counot issue a visa without his having a visa 
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for the Soviet Union •• wd now he (the Soviet) does. not know what to 

do with hirn (the Jlmeri cun). because they have to ~a it for an answer 

fran Washington. 
' . 
Silvia DURAN agrees the same pro~lem exi~sfs wHh the Cubans. 

tl\at 'the probleiln~ith him (the ~eric.an) is that .he does not know 

···anyone in Cuba and therefore if tha't is true it .. wi11 be difficult 
' ' ' - . . . . . 

for him to get a visa for Cu'ba, because he was thinking of proces-. '·· . . - ' 

' . - . 

··:-.-::require w·aitfng ·.a long tim~ for his visa ~o the Soviet u·l'!ion whfJe 

in Cuba, and from ~there go to 'the Soviet Union: The Soviet said. 

the. thing is that if his wife righ_t now were-in' Washington she 

would receive her visa· right now, or permission·. from the Soviet 

Un1Qn.- to return to her country; she is going t_o receive her vfsa fn 

Wash.ington but having this visa, she could canmunicate to any place 

this penilission, for example here or. any place she cou.lcl receive it 

(visa or pennission), but right. now they do not have them. 

Silvia DURAN seys certainly and"they- coonot<give·-a··letter_-·ett:her · " 

be.~ause they do not kndw if the visa will be approved. The Soviet 

.. says he cannot give a·letter or recommendation either because he 

does not know him (the Pmerfcan) a~d asks to be excused for 

bothering her. SUvia DURAN says that is all right and many thanks. 

c. 28 September 1963 (Saturday}, 1151-hours Mexico City time. 

Silvi~ DURAN calls the-USSR Embassy and talks to an unidentified 
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So'v I et. She sJys thclt In the Cuban Emb,1ssy there i!; a North 

k.lcrican. who w.1s _at the Soviet Embilssy. Tlie Soviet Sdys lll'ait a 

·.minute. Silvia DURAll speaks English with someone--and ci:r.r.ents in. 

Spanlsh·that they gave APARICIO.telephone 14-12-99and to take the. 

number.down--Silvia DURAN ·then says the American citizen is going· 

to t<~fkwith yoo. Le.,'the Soviet. The A'lierican first speaks. 

Russian a~d the ·sovi.et ·sp!!aks English. They continue in Eng1i$h.-: 

The AmerH:an talks broken Russian and says I was 1i'1 your Einbassy and 

spok~;;:~~:Y·~·r ,ConsuL· Just a minute. A Soviet takes "ul·e phol'\i!.and· 

as~s. the American in E~glJsh. what does he want?. The Jlroerican says 

pfe<3se speak Russian. The Soviet says what else do you wan~? The 

Ame.d·can says 1 was· just now at your Embassy. and they took I11Y · 
~:· " 

address. The Sov fet says l know that. The f41ter1 can,, in hardly. 
' ·.' 

recognizable Russian. says I did not know it then. I went to the 

'Cuban Embassy to dsk tliem 'for f!lY address. because they have it .. 

The Soviet says why don't you come again and leave your a<ldt-ess 

with us. it is not far fr:o.m the Cuban Embassy. The Jlroeriean says 

I' 11 -be there right away. 

d. October 1963 (Tuesday). 1031· hours Mexico City time. 

An unknown male. (Anerican) cans the Soviet Embassy. the ~ilitary 

Attache's number. 15-69-87, and says to an un1nentlfied Soviet 

respondent: I was at your p 1 ace last Saturday and ta'1ked to yoor 

Consul. They said that they ~1ould send a telegram to Washington. 
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and I "'·wted to .1 sk you if tlwrc is ,;nyth l n9 new? The Soviet says 

I would 1 He to a sl you to ca_ll Jnothcr phone number? Please wr He 

it .dcwn: 15·60-55, ilnd ask for a consuL Thank you • 

....... _ 
e. .October 1963 (Tuesday), 10-lS hours Mexico City time. 

The san:e person who phoned a day or so ago and spoke in broken. 

Russian speaks t-0 OOYEOKOV (a Soviet Enib.lssy guard). He says: 

Thh is lee O?WAto speakinq.. I was at your pl_ace last Saturday. a_oo 

spoke 'to a con~ul. and they said tlklt they ~ould send a telegram to 

Washington, so I wanted ·to find out if iou haye. anything new? But 

I don't remember the name of ·that consuL OBYEOKOV says: KOSTIKOV. 

He ·is dark (hair 'or skin - ?) • OSWAlD says yes·. My name fs OSWALD. 

OBYEDKOV says. just a minute, I I 11 find ~ut. They say that they 

have not rec_eiv.ed anything yet. OSWAlD says: Have they done 

anything? OBYEOKOV says:- Yes. they say that a request has been 

sent Ol.fl, but nothing has been received. as yet. 

Nhat •..•• ? .. OSYEOKOV hangs up. 

OSWALD says , a~ 

16, Each of these items. including the te_xts of the raw intercepts, 

were read by. discussed with, and examined by Warren Corrmfssion staffers· 

in Headquarters and at the Mexico Station during a stay from 8 - 13 April 

1964. 3 All were made available pranptly to the FBI. 

3 The Warr':n Co7111ission group that visited the Mexico Station consisted 
of Mr. Coleman, Mr. Slawson, and Mr. Willens~ They examined r.'ot only the 
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t~e follo""~f~ u~'ltl.lcts with the Cut-an ..lnJ Soviet offici;d cstabHstr..;erit's · .i 

· .in. Mex ic ~or C i t,y. 

a • ..:; St>ptt.,lllJer. 1963 (Fr·iu<~.y) •. Mtcr· .lrrivul .mid .chcd.;~i.n to. 
his hotel, i..'SWAlO went first to th~. Cub.tn Embassy where he t.:lH:ed 

·. with 1".rs. Silv,ia DURAN: . .The ti~e Of his first. C~b.ln Emba~sy 'liisi:t . 

ds unl;n,~r. •. the. t fme 'of ll.i s se<eoo Cuban Embass; -v f sit ·was :a~t 
' • ' < ~ • 

·cuban Elt,~ssy v·isits,-at Mrs. DURAN's. indjcatjo~; ~e.m~St have·· 

:visited ;~ Sl:'viet· Embassy. We have no irnHcatfon ~o he talked 

with at t~ Soviet Embassy. 

intercepts ;-, - e dbove .• but others fp1· the 27th a~d one· for· 3 Octroer 
'that see~ne>d to ruve .. r.elevance. These have not bePn inc.luded in this . 
si.niunary be<:"'.Jse they appe·ar.: on review: to b~ ex.cludable ·fr.on theOSWALO. 
matter on l~i..:<1l -or.- substantive gt·CI.Hi...is, or· ~oth• beari·ng in minJ that· 
th~ Soviet' t)::l:\.1ssy receiVe~ :~any .calfs pertainin'g to v.is~ matters: _ 

On the 27th at 1037 hours the S~viet Enib.lssy received a call fran . 
an unknown ir)jh·idua1 speaking Spanish htlO said he Wilnted visas .to go 'to 
Odessa. He "'as. told _the Consul was Mt in and to ca}l 'back at ll~O •. 
OSWAlD is i.:n0t.~ tC' have arrived at tlk:! Flecha Roja bus.tennina1 on bus 
#5Hi at dr.::a 1000 ho~lrs on the 27th. It was, t~~refore, possibl~ for 
him to have rn~.:!~ this call. But gr·anting this, it is unreasoriable to 
believe the oHs were OSWALD's for the following· reasons: 

a. Th~ ca·ller wanted vis.:~s. and specifically for Odessa. 
OSWAlD lollS seeking a visa ·and n~t>r in any .. co'ntcxt did he spe<:Hy 
the Bla.:;. S<2il port of McssJ as a destirotion. 
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There 1~.1s no phut\..'~;r,l;•ht c ccvt~l'il9C of OSWI\I.U' s entrfcs. 

into elthet· the CubJn or Soviet E."'lbassies on the 27th. The lad of· 

cover,lgc on the Cuban inst.Jil,ltion ·is cxplaiiliible: '~he cwner!l, 

based on tht~ recollection of officers still 1n service fn llt!'ad­

quartcrs, was dm:..n on ·the 27th because 9f lill?chanical ma.lfunctton, 

• · which was ·In course of correction. Why OSWALD was m1sscd·l_n his 

probable entty to the Soviet lnstaflation·on the 27th 1s npt yet 

.explained, but no technical operatfon o~. that ~ind- ls tnfalHble. 

- _ b. 28 September 1963 (S,lturday}; '[Note: Both the Cuban and 

· Sov.ie.t·Emb~ss'ics were closed to the public- on Saturdays. Photo-· --- - . - - . 

graphic coverage was normally suspended Saturdays and Sundays~ l 

b. The call was d1 rected to the correct Soviet con~ular· 
number: 15-60-55. On 1 October, OS!~AIIfTfrst called the wr·ong 
number. 15-69~8.7 (the ~lA' s number). and haa to redirect his ca 11 ,t;o 
the correct n11mber-: 15.:.60-55. 'It seems 'un ll ke ly he wou.ld have made 
what wquld have been his 1nltial call,on Friday th~ 27th, to the 
correct number, and called the incorrect number on· 1 October . 

. J., ' . 
. -- -

c. There is every reason to believe frOm 'the· context of the 
intercepts. para 15, .1-e a'bove, thdt OSWALD's first desflnatlon 
after airival and check-in to his hotel. was a visit to the Cuban· 
Embassy. · · · 

d~· The use of the ·spani~h language woulij exclude OSWALD unless 
he mtide use of an i ntenncdi ary, which seems un 1i ke ly fr001 what is 
known of his modus operun_5i..l. · 

On 3 October at 1539 hours an individual sneaking broken Spanish, 
then English, called the Soviet Embassy and asked for a visa. The Soviet 
respondent says: Call on the other phone. The requestor says: I'm 
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OS!~,\Ul, notwtthst',mdi Ill] the hoi id,ly schedule. went on S.1tu1·day 

morning to the Soviet fr.lh.lssy (his second visit.) t.'hen~ he spoke to 

a Consul. He app..1_rently could not recall his new Texas address. 

At d t·ca 1151 hoors he W<ent to the Cuban Embas's.Y- -his third entry·· ... ~~. . 

_ 'l)f~ere he had registered it in his yl'sa applic.ltfon the d.zy · 

prevll)ysly. He secured ~he Jddt·ess fran M~s. DURAN and she called 

the Soviet Consulate presur.tJtily to_ pennit hini to give .them the . 
' ' -

addre_ss over the phone. Instead, th-e Soviet with whom OSWALD spoke 

_over'Mrs. DURAN's telephone invited OSWALD to cane back in person. 

and he said he_ wou.ld ill111edfately; PreS!Jmably;'thereup<in -OSWALD went 

back to the- Soviet installation (his third entry). 

-----------·---... ---' -

looking for ~ v.isa tel go to Russia. The. Sov'iet says: Please call on tli'e 
telephone of the Consul, 15:..60.,55. The requestor says: One manent 
please;· I' 11 have- to get a pencil to ~rite the number dmm. They issue 

·the visa·.-:tnere? The Sov.iet:. Th..1t depends on your coriicr:sation. I ·aon't 
know about thi.s.business. The requestor asks for'the number agai.n. The 
Soviet gives him the number dnct tells him to ask for the Consul of the 
Soviet Embassy in Mexic'o. · 

The relevance of this inter-cept to OSI~ALD is excludable on 'three 
grounds: 

a. The use of broken Spanish. OSWALD throughout used broken 
Russian or English. _He had no competance in Spanish to handle a 
con_versation· of this kind. 

b •. The subsfance of the request indicates a visa request tn 
the first stages of initiation. OSWALD had developed his matter 
with the Cubans and the Soviets the previous Saturday to a point 
well beyond the stage indicat;.>d by the substance of this call. 
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d. ~--~eyter~bcr 1963 (11ondi!l). flo activity registered. 

(Jt·is known th<Jt oswAo reserved space this date on a Me.xico City-
. I 

I 

lore·do.bus. departing 2 October 1963. at 0830 hours.) 

e. October -1963 '(Tuesday). OSWAlD made at least two calls, 
I -

at 1031 and 1045 hours. to _the Soviet Embassy. He tdentffied himself 

twice durfng tt!e- sec on~ ca 11 when he talked· with OBYEOKOV --a guard-- .. 

c~nd referred to his talk on Satimiay, pro~bly with KOSHKOV. There 

was no photographic coverage of OSWALD on 1' OCtober~ if .the fo11ow-

1 ng reason1 ng fs correct • that was as H shoo 1d 'be. From the' context . 
; . ' . ~ 

of the b1o calls, ':there would have been no_ reason few him to go to 
. . l . 

the Embassy. 'His·.Fase had clearly been placed at the sufferance of 

the USSR Embassy fn Washington.· Hfs -two calls on 1 October were 
-: 

concerned with whether any ·reply- had been received_ fran Washington. 

Under-those circumst<.mces, it is unreasonable to believe OSWALD 

.wou ld·'have gone to--the· Sov-tet·. Embassy ori that date. _ 

18. The camera at about mid-day regfstE:r~:d' the entry into the 

Soviet Embassy of a wh1te-shirted individual who, in the opinion of the 

c. OSWALD had left l~exico City, based on all the credible 
evidence, the early morning of the previous day, 2 October, and 

·cootd· not ha_ve made this local call. 
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only person--,l ncon~L.ttin. and possibly .HI .-\ncl'ic,.m-·whfJ entCI'cd the Soviet 

installation. l)n the d1ance there could ~ .m association bel~~cn the.:· 

·identification dat.t deriVed fran the voirc interrcpt iJnd the descriptive 
' . . 

data derived fra:t the photOtJr~ph. the St .• lt.lon rrpprtcd the two elements 

as separate J acts in its. cable to He<idquJI:ter-s on B 'October. 

19. The Station's action was not unusual and re<11ly amoonte·d to an 

analytic "q4.lntum.leap," jus~Hied by the prfm·it'he and initiatory Status 
' . ' .. 

of the OSWALD identifiCation. f·l!ln.v ex<~~noles of a·sim11ar kind of thing ,. 

can be ·found 'in th~ day'-to-day record of Stath:m-lteadquarters correspon.; 
'I" 

dence and. reporting. 

Developments ft·ern 8 October -·22 Novcmb~l·l%3. 

20. Me xi co St..it ion reported to lleoJdquart<i,rs ()n 8 October Crecei ved in 

Headquarters 9.t\:tober) the fo1lowing.initial information on OSWAL0.4 

(1) On 1 October 1963, an Americar. male who spoke 

bt-oken Russian and said hls name lee OSWALD (phonetic), 

stated he was at ScvEmb on, 28 Septt>tnber ~then he spoke 

4 Cab1ese has been rendered here •. and throughout. fnto readable English, 
without substJntive changes or omissions. Cryptonyms and pseudonyms 
have been omitted or put into clear text. 
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with <1 consul tr.tlon he believed to be \'.~leriy 

VL1dlmirovlch KOST!I\OV. Subje"ct asJ..t\1 the $Qvlct 

guard (Ivan'] OOY[OKOV. who answered, if thet·e was 

anything new r1!9,wding a telegram to Washington. 

OBYEOKOV upon .checking said nothing· had been 

received _yet. but the request had· been sent. 

(2) Mexico Statfon'said i~ had ph~tas of a rna.le 

·who appeared to be an Jlroerican entering the Siwfet 

·.-.,:·:·, Embassy at 1216 hours. leaving 1222 on 1 October. 
' .. ~; 

Apparent. age 35, athletic build, drca -6 feet·, 
• • r • '~ 

receding hairline, balding top. Wore khakis and 

sport shirt. 

(3) Nolocal dis.semii'Jation was bef.ng made by the 
. ' 

Station. 

21. On 10 October 1963 at 2012Z tlme the WH Division. responsible 

for act_i on di ssemi na ted this report to the Department of State, the FBI, 

and the Navy Department by r·outinc electrical tr·ansmission, adding scme 

collateral details drat~n fran a preliminary file review: 

(1) On.l Octobet· 1963 a reliable and sensitive 

source in Mexico reported that an Anel'ican male, 

who identified himself as lee OS\~ALD. cont<lcted 

ttie Soviet Embassy fn Mexico City ir.quil'ing 
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CHili!19. a telegr.!:r. 1\tlicll hJJ l;oeen se~t to 

W-tshi;~ii;Qn. The A-:':erican WdS_.described as\. 
approximately 3S .)'t?<lrs old~ with an .lthletitl: 

• I 

build •. ..ibout 6 feet tall, with a "re~eding" 

hairline. 
i 

·(2) It Is beli.eved that OSI\..:O.lD may be identi~al 

to lee Henry [sic] OSI\.t;l.O, born' on .18 ()ctobcr :1939 

who defected to the Soviet Union in October 19S9 

and later made arrangements through th~ United . 

·States Embassy in MoscO:t to return to the United 

States with his Russi an-born wife, Nari !lil 

Nikolaevna PUSAKOVA (sic] and their chlld. 

(3) Thejnfonnation in pilragraoh. (1) is being 

disseminatt?d to your representatives in Mexico City.· 

Any further infonnation received on this subject 

will be furnished you. This infonnation is being 

made availab.le to the lmigration.and Natu1·alization 

Ser-vice. 

" 

22. Although the reaction of the Headquarters desk \\'as "by the 

book" and in gocd time, there ~rea r.umrer of err01·s in this advisory 

to the departments which, on the 'record. were concerned with the OSWALD 

case: 

·-~ 
~~·~~M""''---=-----~--~---'1:~----· 
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a. OSWALD'~ middle Mr.:t" w..~s nnsgiven: ''Her.ry" for ~-r:..~-~-

The reason for this mistake is simplicity itself. The sheet Of,X'nin~ 

the f i 1 ~ on OSWALD on 9 Oec~:ber i 960. had been errone.ous ly i nscri t-ed 

"CSWAL[l •. le·e Henry." That shi~ct--unchanqe<l exc.:ept for the riot at ion of 

the error--i.s ~tfll the first sheet in the OSWJI.LD file. 

b. His wife's maiden na1:1e. was mi~spe lled: "PUSAKOVA" fot· ~~tSAJ(OVA. 

' I 

.NeHher of these errors are significant_ (though they persist in the 

Headquarte17s canmunicc1tf ons throughoot. the ·month). M\lre important was: 

. c. Paragr'aph' '(2) of the Mexico St~tion's. report, which dealt' with. 
• • • ' I 

a 'concurrent. but separate. pherloo1enon. the- description of an iooividual 
. . 

observed going into and ou.t of the Sqviet fmbassy. had been locked on to 
. . . 

lee OSWALD _as an a Ueg'ed descriptiv~ fact. The Stat ion • s qua 1i ni::ati on. 

"appeared to be an Pmerican," was transfofnied in the flat d.esignaticm of 

the unidentified individual as "The Pmerican.". 

There can be no question that this misreading of the Mexico Station report 

was an analyst's error which escaped detection in the coordination before 

release: the desc'riptive detai.ls attributed to OSWALO WE're so far off the 

mark as to be immediately recognizable· as ~uch by the r·eci pi ents in Head~ 

quarters, runong whom both the Navy and FBI had photos of OSWALD. {In partial 

explanation, if not exculpation, be it recalled that as of that moment CIA 

had no photograph of OSWALD in Headquarters or in Mexico City to ref~r to.) 

23. Confirmation of this judgment is provided by the cortents of 

the cable c~posed by the same ana 1yst and sent as of 2209Z time (two 

hours Tater) to Mexico Station, refe_rencing its 8 October cable: 
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5[CR(i 

( 1) l"C osr;r,LD who Cd ll N SovEnb 1 l\:: tul"ll'l" 

probably !dent ic.tl lee Henry (sic] 0SiiALD bern 

18 October 1939, ilew Orleans, louisidn.i, fonncr 

r,Hlar operator in Un_ited StiltPs '1"1arines who 

defected to USSR in October 1959. OSWAlD is 
five -feet ten inches. one hundt-ed sht;y fiye 

pounds, H.ght brown iitavy hair~ blue eyes. 

(2) On 31 October -1959 he attempted to renciuri<:e 
' ' 

hi's United States ciiizenship tQ the Uriited States 

Einbas.sy in Mosco\0!, indicating he- had -applied ·for 

Soviet citizenship. On 13 Febn.i<irY t~e US Embassy 

Moscow received an undated ieltet· fron OSWAlD-

postmarl<P.d Minsk on 5 February 1961 in \\tlich sub­

ject indicated he desired return of h.is US passport 

as he wished to return to USA if '\~e could wne 

to some agreement concerning the dropping of any· 

-1 ega 1. p,r.oceedi.ngs_. aga.J ns.t_. _me_;"- .-On _l!_ J_l!_ly Qn h. is 

own i nl t f ati ve he appeared at the Embassy with 

his ~tife to see about his return to States. 

Subject stated that he actually had never applied 

for Soviet cit~zensh1p and that his application 

at that time had been to remain in USSR and for a 

temporary extension of his toorist-visa pending 

outcahe of his r·equest. This applfcation, according 

to OSWALD, contained no reference to Soviet 
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rJd i o ,mJ tv factory in Ni ri::>l "-~ r'l:' he worf<.eij 

m.'lrded on 3-0 April 1961 to ~.\dnJ Ni!..olJevna 

- PUSA"-1J\'A (sic], a·dentdl te.::!':niciJn born 17 July 

1941, USSR. No Hea~\l.:trters tr-Jces. He 

attempted-to arra119e for his \liffe to join him in 

Moscow so she could appeJr at ~bJss~ for vfsa 

·.intervieW. Hh ~erican passol'rt WJS returned 

to him. US Embassy Mosel~ stJteJ twenty months 

of reJ·lities of life- in Soviet Union had clearly 

had a mdturlng effect 011 OS~-\lO. 

repot·t dated May·l962-s.ayif19 the FBI had deter­

mined OSWALD Is sti 11 a US citi.ten and both he 
'' 

and his Soviet wife have exit permits and 

Dcpat·tnient of State h3d given approval for their 

trave 1 with thef r infant child to USA. 

{4) The Station should pJss the infonnation of 

refe•·ence ( f ts 8 Octooet· cJb le] and paragraph ( J) 

above to the Embassy. t~ F5i. the N.wy. and I&NS 

locally. The infonn.ition given at-ov~ as 
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(.5) ·Fefet't'tKe J_nd possible ldcntific.r~h-r:. 

·bC.ing diss~i~\tted to lleudquclrti:.>rs of f::~z. Se..Jte. 

Navy, ·and UNS; PICilSC keep llt.!!1dQiMrte~-s 

ad.vi sed on -'tV· .further i:o_ntacts or pcsi.th"e 

identification of OSWAlD.· 

24. Headqu;u·ters feedb.ack, ~o. Mo}dco Cl ty .:lf c-~~o· s correct 

description should hjve been sufficient. in view cf :.!':e f ncongruHfes . ' . . . . . . ~ . ' 

with the details deduced frun the photo. o~ the uni..!e!'tified ma_1e, to 

keep these two matters apart as i nvestigatiV,e. f~cts •.. ·But 'things dfd not 

work out tha_t way. 

25. Mexico Station on 15 October 1963·asked ~adqu<!rter-S to 

"please pouch a photo of OSW.Ato:" 1-leadcjuprters·ek.:!ric.:slly delivered 

to the Department of the NJvy the fo 11 CMfng mes-sa~"i:? on 24 October 1963; 

"Lee Henry (sic) OSWALD 

"It is requested that you forward to this office 

as soon as possible two copies of the rnrs: n~cent 

photograph you h,we of subject. We wi l'! fcrward 

them to our t•epresentat1ve in Mexico. ~;: '41·11 

attempt to determine if tM lee OSWALD ht ~exico 

City and subject ilre the Silrne 1nd1vidu3!." 
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26. Within its lii:1it,1tions .wd Ci!P<1bilities. "<:,icl' Station had 

don~ all H could to coi:ply with IINdi!IHirters ir.s!!'-!i.:tions: 

a. Headquat'ti.'!I'S t1<1d be~n alerted. arid in :urn those agendes 

wnh ifn investigative or p~lt'cy interest in C:S~.l.LD !lS an Anerican · ·· 

in ttie United States hlid been alerted, both in.W.uhington and 1n 

the (fe1d. 

b. Mexico Station had no further cont.>Jcts by OSWALD. to report 
-

. because-~as it was ultimately ascerta1ne<f--he ·~..td left Meidco Cfty 

on Z October. 

c. OSWALD was not an Agency invest igath~ responsi bi 1Hy; 1 n 

any case. Even with a photograph, l.t would t'-.1'le tdkcn very sped 111 

efforts, triggered by the other inte.rested U.S. agencie~, to have 

mad~ a positive identification in vie~1 of OS~!-.:..D's hotel registra­

tion under alias. 

There the matter rested· unti 1 mid-day 22 flovembei" l~e:3. 

The Insertion of the Photo of the·Unident1fied In~i•idual into the 

Chain of Evidence 

27. On 22 November 1963 the Mexico Station c.'::Oled Headquarters at 

22Z9Z t lme after learning of the arrest of leP. H. CSiiAlD. age 24. 
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possibly In connection with the as~il'.c.inatfon, and refer~nced Its 

ear 1 ier messJges of 8-9 ;md 15 October aoo liNdquar tcr:t.' reply of 

10 October.· The Station reqi1ested by: 

"priority pouch '! photo of OSWAlD s() that Statton 

. ·c.afi dfeck all recent coverage for OSWALD. Forward• 

·tng soonest copies of only visitor to' Soviet Embassy 

on 1 October whQ could. be identical with OSWALD." 

l8~ It fs clear that Mexico Station had forg~tteri that accordfll!J 

to Hs ~n camnunicatfon the unldenf1f1ed'ma1e In the photo was of 

"apparent age 35" ·and that the accurate description .of OSWALD forwarded 

by Headquarters· on 10 October precluded the identity with OSWALD of the 

person whcm they regarded as the "only visitor to the Sovfet Embassy on 

·oc'tober who could be identical." 

29. The Station meamihile ·had begu.n an exhaus.tfve ·and accelerated 

review of all its technical and photi.>graphfc fntell fgence. A alspatch 

was prepared f.n ac·cordance with the fndfcation given in the cable of 

22 November, cited in paragraph 25 above. The dispatch n?ted that 

photo coverage of the unidentified individual had turned up on 4 and 

15 October at the Sov.ief and ·cuban Embassies, respectfvely. The text 

of the 22 November 1963 pouched dispatch read: 

"1. Attached are copies of the only photographs 

obtained ... on I October 1963 which appeared 
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to be an i'ltncrican. This same m.1r. vlsitf!d the Soviet 

Eri1uu s sy on . 4 October 196 3. 

"2. Copies of t!Jcse ph·otbgraphs were shown to the 

U.S. Ambdssador on 22-Nov~nber 19~3 and a copy ~f 

each of the two photogr:aph.s w~s given .to Chief FBl. 

Mexico, on that date •••• 

"P. S: Pho.tog' raphs dated ·15 .October 1963' were 

inserted after typIng. of d1spatch. These were 
' ,· 

taken-as [the] person entered the Cuban Embassy." 

Attached were eight photogra~hs: four (of which two were marked 

1 Odober ·on reverse) showing the individual fn a white shirt, and four 

(unmarked on reverse)_ sht:Mfng the individual in a blar.k shirt. It 

would seem fo be 1 og l ca 1 ~hat the word "sets" was probably ani tted frOJn 

paragraph two of the dispatch between the words "two" and "photographs." 

- ' 

JO. That the Sta't1on. ~1as workfn·g-·· un~er forceifdraft fs dearly·--

apparent fr01n the 'text of the- dispatch, which tacked on a material fact 

as a postscript;. That fact was reported simultaneously by cable to 

Headquarters at 0053Z time, 23 Nov~ber: 

"1. .Mexico Station has photos same unidentified 

ftmerican type who fs poss1 b1y OSl~AlD er.ter1ng 

Cuban Embassy on 15 October. Searching for 
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possi bi lit v photo-docun:entcd entry Cuhiln (miJ,Jssy 

"2. Also attempting estJblfsh OSWN.D entry and 

departure Mexico." 

31. Headquarters, at Ol36Z time, 23 llovember 1963, asked Mexico 

Station to send a staH menber with all photographs to Headquarters on 

the next avai 1ab1e flight. 

: .. 32. Concurrently-with or before the foregoing cables to Headquarters, 

the ·cliief of Station. Mexico City,. had spokendfrectly by. double-talk 

tele.phon~ with the Western Hemisphere Chief of Ofvfsfor,, Mr. J. C. KING. 

andsecured permission to .give copies of the 'photogf'aphs of the uniden-
. . 

I 

tified htdlvidual to the Legal Attache and to ma_r.ie them known to t_~e 

fvn~assador. 

33. What happened next is be_st reflected in a personal note by the 
I 

Chief .. of.. Statfon to the WH Division Chief, mailed to the latter fran 

. ' 
Da-11 as. together with copies of the photographs, by the leg a 1 Attaches 

representative who delivered them to the FBI in that cfty. 

"22 tlovember 1963 ; 

"Dear J.C. [KING]: 

"Reference is made to our conversation of 22 llovember: 
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'IIJ:I.' is known to )'I.'!U • 

. ~Att-Khed ... iire copies of each of the photographs · 

~o-e hJve with th~ dates of the visits stamped ori 

th~ back. 

•At 6-·p·.m. Mexico time on 22 Nov·ember. The Pmbas­

s-J..ilr decided that this was important enough. to 

·r..lve a member Of. the leo:Ja1 Attache's office take 

et~ies of these pictures to Dallas, Texas. The 

Naval Attacht: is maki119 .i special flight from 

~o:?xico City for t~is purpose. The Legal Attache's 

officer· who is going to Qallas has promised to 

m.:til this material to you for· me. 

"Cc-pies of these pt:ot0<;,1raphs art> nlso being sent 

by pouch which will leave Nexico City on the 

night of 22 November· 1963. 

"~s t wishes • 

"Win [SCOTT]" 

' According to a sidelined ccmnent on this letter, the Legal Attache's 

offi cet· w~s Eldon Rubo. 
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.34. The decision to remit the photographs to the FE! in Dallas 

had be~n made by the fvnbassador, Jccor·ding to the Chief of St,,tion, who 
' .. 

s in:u ltaneous 1y· with the Fll I agent's departure repor·ted to· tieJdqlia!ters 

by cable (0244Z time, 23 November): 

., ·.'· 

"fBI agent left here 2000 local time with two copies 

· . each of six photos of a per~ on suspected to be 

OSI~AlO, on a specia) flight for Dallas;. He is 

carrying envelop~-wi~h one copy .each photo for 

ainna11 special from Dallas to J. C. KING at· 
' . . 

home as per teleQhOne CO!"Versation with SCOTT. 

• One copy of each of these photos plus a copy of 

each of the photos showi~g the same person exiting 

the Cuban Embassy fo.rwarded by memorandum leaving 

by regular pouch tonight. In view of above does 

Hqs still want a staffer with add~t1o~a1 photo(s)?" 

35. H~adquarters r:esponded two hours· 1 ater, 0422Z time, 

23 November 1963,, cancelling its request: 

"1 • · · No need send staffer ·with photos. We have 

asked Navy for photos again, but Mexico· can see 

OSWALD's picture soonest on the press wire. 

"2. Have just re-emphasized to fBI Headquarters 

the sensHivity of photos you are· sending and also 
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re layi n'] names 'of tr·ave lcrs with simi l.1r llilllii.'S. 

Note radio -says OSi-iALD lived under· alias of 

0. H. LEE." 

36. On the 23r:d at 11~l time, Headquaners o1dvised Mex-ico City: 

"The FBI say;>_ that the photos of the man 

entering the Soviet .Einbassy which -~iex-fc:o 

Station,sent to Dallas were not of lee OSWAlD. 
' 

Presume Mexj co Stafiori has doub 1~-checked 

dates .of these_ photos and is also checking a.11 
. . 

pertinent photos for.possib1e shots of OSWALD." 

37. And at this. point, 2048Z t!nie, 23 November, Mexico Station 

finally agreeC:: 

"Saw J)hotos of_ lee OSWALD on television night of 

22 November and it obvious photos sent to Da 1las 

were not identical with lee OSWALD Held Hl' o;rnas·:· ·: ·-···· 
Oates are as given on photos. 

"Nexico Station is reviewing all ava'ilable photos 

of persons entering Soviet and Cuban Embassies." 

38. Two hours 1 ater ( 2254Z time, 23 November 1963) the Statf on had 

reported the results of 1ts effort to review an available coverage: 
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"Cor.'p it?~!! rl!chcc~. of phutos of .111 vls i tors to 

CubJn (">b..Jssy fron 1\ugust ttH·bu<Jh first half of 

Noverr.tfi?r· ,,g.Jl nst 'lOOd press photos shows no 

evidence of OSWALD visit. Similar blank against 
.. .:..__ 

a11 Soviet Embassy photos fran 1 September·. 

No~e. only visit we know he made to Cuban Embassy 

28 se·ptt:rnber, Saturday, on· which Embassy closed 

and we had not' had coverage' ••.•• "· 

. 39. Wi~h this c.cmmunication the matter of the "unidentified 

1nd1v1dua1" r-each~s the -~nd of Phase I, the key element of which is the 

_ convl ct ion, at- first .1 a tent. then expressed, that the photographed 

individual might be identfc~1 with. OSWALD. This applies especially to· 

the .Station, thoogh at a certain point even Headquarters moved no 

rebuttal despite the hard fact that the descript1 on of CSWALO. and t~ 

unidentified individual were quite disparate. 

40.- .Jhis. .. revi~. ha~ attempted to.dea1 ev,en-hi)nded,ly l'!ith all it~ 

1 n the case recor-d that have a bearing on what_ happened. The opet·atil'na 1 

zeal, fnnovativeness. and the high crnunittment of all involved, 

especially in Mexico City, speaks fot· itself. Equally apparent·-

because of the 20il0 advantage of hindsigi1t--1s the evidence of 

non-performance. It was a critical failure, for example, that no rh~to 

of OSWALD was made available--though it was expressly requested both at 

Headquarters and by the field--or that it was not more aggressively 
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S0U~lht by (l!',. <::..:fc .. ·i:> 22 NOVl1llber. A photo9r.tph of OSWI\LO wo11 Jd h<w~ 

obviJttld·-in <l "~>.J!' tl'1<: mt•n• possession of .:1 cor-rect physlcdl description 

evidently cC'4Jid r:(lt·-t!':t! whole successive deteriort~tion of what began in 
I -

Mexico City cas,tn i;::~I'I?S~imdstic se1r>ctlon of the' ph~itO!]rilph on 

O<:tobcr 1%3 inti) ..1 \:Jusc celebre today. 

40. It sh~ld tt'! cle.:~r from this ·racttia1 survey that never !lad­

,, there been' a caa:Ht' cel~bn? with less· intrinsic mer'it. lt fs equaJ1y_ 

clear from the f~ts themselves that there was nothing contrived or 

conspired in wh3t happened. unless we have now-descended ~~ ~hat poin~ 
& 

in human values .1chieved under S1/\UN in the USSR a-nd under HITLER in 

Germany.- t.~t;.>t'e just ..1 plaln.mistake Is per se_evidence of conspiracy. 

~sis',!.f.:ld n~vel!±11nent of Odum Ex~_i_~_H_l!9~s! 

Contnlssion E),hit>it 237 

41. Spec iJ 1 Age_nt of the FB r. Bardwe 11 D. OOUM, on 23 Jlovcmber 

1963 showed one <:f the· six photos 'flown up frcm Mexico Clty the previous 

day to OSWAlD's a::othe1·. Mar·guerite OSWALD. ODUM himself had trimmed off 

thP. background by straight cuh'.' 'Mrs. OSWALD had no recognition of the 

image in the phofQ9raph. ODUM's own detailed account may be found fn 

Hearings, op cit. Vol. XX, p. 268. 

42. Th~ ph..~tcgraph shows the unidentified individual In a black 

~hirt. It was on~ of the five photos taken o~ him in front of the Soviet 
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left the city. 

43, At this point, fm· th~ recc.nJ, tlic tot,,l av.1i1able photo 

coverage of the unidentified individual 11llmbers twe·lve (12) phot()(Jraphs: 

a .. Five (5) taken en 1 October 1963, entering and· ex·f~fng the·· 

Soviet Embassy. ···He is gJrhed in a white shirt ·and light-colored 

(khaki-?) trousers_. 

·b. Five· (5) tuken o~ ~October 1963 in front of the Soviet 

Enioassy. · He is~y-Ji·b~f in a dark; op.en, button-down shirt with a 
. ,. . . 

high-necklfne_undershirt showing and dark trousers. 

c. Two (2) taken on 15 October 1963 in ft·ont of the Cuban 

Embassy .. He is wearing a d,wk, collarless T-shh·t or light sweater. 

The negatives .of c1ll of these aN! extent and are n<:W lleld in Headquarters 
. . 

as integr,ll parts of. the OSl~ALO and related file holdings. 

44. The result of ODUM's display of the photograph·:.-to repeat, ·a 

cropped version· of one of thos,e noted under pantgraph 43b, above--was 

Mrs. Marguerite OSWALD's allegJtion that she had been sh"~n a picture of 

her· son • s killer, Jack RUBY, a day before he pet·petuated the deed~ Aga1 n 

the Warren_ Conmdssion Re.Q_ort (pp. 364-365. 367) exhaustively disposes 

of this erroneous charge and requires no repetition here. A complica­

ting fact developed along the 'lltay was ~Irs. OSWAlD's (con<ect) observation, 
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WdS not RUBY, wil~ thtl t the ·photo h.ld t>l.'en cropvcd differently· from the· . 

one she ha~ been shown 1,n O.tllas. In:;.pt>c-tor M/\lLU''s cropped version of 

{he ODUM phot()(Jr.lph'b~canlc Corrr:ission bhibtt 237 (see Hearln92_, 

Vol. xvr. p. 638) •. 

4~. The net effect of the deveh"~pments in the hearfnCJS of the 

Commiss!on was to rcqui re the adnlissior. ~f the. cropped photograph fnto 

. ev.ld~nce 1n a ·chain of depositions ~~~irnling w-ith ODUM, includi~g the 

FiH Inspector, James R. MALlEY (who had trimmed the photograph use~. by 

too CommiSs:fon ln Washington), ai1d Richdt~ HElMS, who deposed for the 

originator. These documents speak for themselves and will be found in 

the flearfn!!s,Vol. XI, pp. 468-470. 

46. Mexl~o Station and othet~J~~-I'!i_qr Agency off~cers strongly. 

advised against the publication or .the photograph in any form on the 

grounds that the Sovf_ets would be i~lnediiltely alerted to the existence 

. of a useful and continu.ing u.s. intelligence 'operation, and the opera-. 

tion·would go down the drain. Ther-e were repeated cables exchJnged on 

this poJ n.~, between Headquarters and Mexico Stat 1 on during the summer 

of 1964, fn particular fran 23 September· 'to 15 October 1964 when the 

Station had plans underway to abandon the operation. 

47. In acceding to the Ccnvniss ion's request for a depos 1t1 on, 

Mr. HELMS, then the Deputy Director for Plans, replied affinnatively to 
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l~r. RArlt:!rf by memoh1ndum of 23 June 1964 which included 'thE follC\ .. ing 

addft!.ona1 observation: 
\ 
I 

''The Cen,tra 1 Inte 1l igence ··Agt.>ncy r-econBllcnds thdt 

this photograph not 1:-.:! r-eor·oduced in the Contnfs· 

.sion's repm t because it would jeopar:dlze a most 

confidential dnd proJuctive operation. In 
' . 

addH!on, H could be embJt·ras·sfng to the ind!vf .. 

dua 1 f.nvo lvea. who as far as the Agency is aware 

had .no connection with .. lee Harvey O.SWALD.or the 

assassfn~·tfon of President KENNEDY;" •· i . 
! 
I 

48. In thl s Instance the· neCds of the Comrnf ss 1 on pr·evailed over 

the DCI's st<~tutory obligatio~ to)>rotect sources and methods. The 

"Unidentified Individual'! remains to this day unident.fficd· .:tnd there is 

no credible evidence up to this time to rebut the assertion made by 

Mr. HELMS in the con·cludlng scntence··of, hiS·IIlelllorandurn.,.to H . .:: ... RANKIN or. 

23 June 1964. And the opel"Jtion did. as predicted. go down the drain·. 

~/fthf n a week of the public tlppe.:trance of the Odu1a Ex hi bit N«:!. 1 and 

Ccmmiss1on Exhfb.it 237, member-s of the. Soviet Embassy began system.ttic 

efforts to survey the surrounding buildings. ostensibly fot· rental 

space, but clearly their· inquiries \>ere directed to spotti11g possible 

camera sites. The operation was continued in any case. Within a year 

1t had bcccxne almost totally unpr-oductive in coverage on AmericanS' in 

contact with the Embassy--a cle<~r sign that this category of visitor 

was bef ng warned away by the Soviets themse·lves. 
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49. f...s could be foreseen, there h<;~s bs:en persistent pressure by 

. criticy of th<? Wi!rren (()i111ission Reror~ to e~plolt Odum [xhibH Flo. 

and Ccr.r.;i'Hio·n Extiibit._:No. 237 for partisan interpretive purposeS'. A 

considerao1e·correspondence has dccumulated sfnce the end of 1964 fn . 
~hith tne'Agency·has attempted to be responsive to these requests and. 

si_inu,1tane~sly, has tried to satisfy wha·t ha~ be~n it~ sole intere~t 

fron the incep~icm of the matter: to pr.o.tect .the roothod of acquisition 

of the phot"Ograph and the which made the 
~----~--------------~ 

acqut~ition possible. 
/ ... 

50. · Fo1lcwing are h1gh hgllts fran the correspondence dut·ing the 

current phase:· 

a. On 16 May 1967, over the s 1 gnature of the General Couns.e 1 

of the Agency, Lawrence R. HillS TON, CIA voluntarily submit ted a 

statement about the photogrdph to Jud:Je. BAGERT of the Criminal 
·-

District Court for·the Parish of Orleans, State of louisiana. 

The rt:s;;cnse dealt affinnative1y with the contents of the subpoena 

that had. been delivered t9 the United States Marshall 1n the District 

of Co 1 umb'i a, despite the fact that the st..bp_oena cou 1d not be 

executed because of the lack of jurisdiction • 

Mr. HOUSTON pt·oferrei:l on Agency beha 1 f categorl c assur­

ances to the co_u rt reg.u·di ng the inaccuracy of statements and 
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~f the unidtmUfi~d in.::h~.:,.;~L The followlr.g is e:\trdcted ft"'OO 

"Sec.wse of the p.;~'i~clty -.;hich has'surrounded the 

Orleans l'.:~rl sh Gr.:n.:i .:.ury proceedings. we have 

recently Ctlrried ·._'\ot J.n exhaustive search of the . 

files of the Cent,-.:~1 tnte11igence Agency for any . . 

. picture of Lee HU'\·~ OS~ .. ~lD taken _hi Mexico. As 

a result. of this search, I cdn state categorically 

that the files of·~~ts -~ency do not contain, and 

neve~ have contai~. any such picture or 

Lee H,wvey OSI~Ai.O t::.l..~n in Mex f co ~Jnd that we have 

no infonnatfon 'tt.'!ii:~.;;("l;!ver that any such photograph 

ever ex I stcd· •. To t:':~ b~st of our knowledge anef -··. 

infonnatl on. theref~("e. there Is no such phot()(Jraph. 

F.~Jrthermore, t~ J'."'~<.::C<J raph wh i c~. is printed in the 

Warren Caumfssion i\·~~crt, Exhibit No. 237 in Volume 

XVI. never contJioo.! more than one figure • .:~nd the 

figure in the ph\'lt~raph depicts an individual \~ho, 

to our knowledg~, ~s not been identified. The 

cir·cwnstances of~ filing of t~!s photograph with 

the Warren COiTI'Iission dr~ set forth in affidavits 

en pages 468 and .!i~ of Volume XI, Hearings Before 

the~·esident's ~~~7ission on the Assassination of 
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of any photogr'<lph thd t ans~>·er·s f n any way the 

description of the one. we uoocrstand was requested 

in. the $ubpi:>ena. 

"I h"ope you wi 11 a.ccept this fnf.ormdtion in this 

form il'! the spidt of cooperation in which it is 

proferred." 

\ 

.. i 

b. The Agency has repeatedly serviced requests li!bout the 

identtfy of 'the unknown i~ividual from Mr. Emory L BROWN, 'Jr., 

Route #4, Box··82, .SqJarikuin Road, Farm1ng<.iale, New Jersey. The last 
I 

exchange of correspondence in our record covered the period· 

4 - 17 April 1970. 

c. Detailed inquiries on the unidentified individual were 

received on 1 and 24 November 1971, to which the Agency responded 

on. 15_November .and 14 December, respectively, from 

l~r. Paul L HOCH, 1735 Highland Place #2, Berkeley; California. 

d. The most extensive effort to pursue the unidentified 

individual was and fs being made by Bernard HNSTERWALD, Jr., who 

is ·now Executive Director of a Canmittee to Investigate Assassina­

tions, 927 55th St.reet, N.W., Washington, D.C., beginning on 

22 11arch 1971, shortly after the AtJency declassified Commission 

Document No. 674, and extending tht·ough 11 October ·1972, after the 

37 

S E C R E T 

-~·' 

.. 



.. .. 

\. 

FS!'s declJssificJtion of C.:m:dssiQn 0;..-,.:t;n~nt No. 556. On~: ...\prll 

1971. Nr. FENSTERWAlO wils inviteJ to the A~ency for a discussion 

with the General Couilse1. t-h-. Hl\tSTON, of ~lis question ah()f.it the 

photograph of Uie unknown f ndi-\' i dual. Two o~her photographs of 

the unidentified individual. in Jddition to the photograph 

depiCted in ;.t:ti'e: two Canmiss ion e~h !bits. lil'ire shewn to h·im· at that 
'. ,-; ·-·~: ' 

tir.~e. It is a 'inJtter of more ti'Mn on:linat·y interest to note that 

.on this occasion Mr; HNSTERWAlD. who was accCtnpani~d by his 

. partner, Mr. Wi_1Ham OHLHAUSE.N, fQ1d Mr. HCUSTON and another 

representative of the Agencf.-tn attendance that he knew _who the. 
. -

unidentified man was. The following is extr<~cted frcin 1'-tf. HCUSTON's 

Memorandum of Record, 8 Aprfl 1971: 

"3. Mr .. HNSTERWALD came to my office this 

morning· with his partner, Wi llium G. OHLHAUSEN, 

1 ooked at the other phot(l<Ji".lphs, and to 1d t•s he 

did know who the man was. He said he is presently 

serving a prison term scmewhere in the United 

States and admitted that he had known OSWALD, but 

~1r. FENSTERWALO said there was nothing to indicate 

any connection between the man in the photographs 

and the ass.a~sination of President KENNEDY. 

Mr. FENSTERI.JALO did not give us the man's name at 

this .time. as he sa_id enough people had suffered 

unnecessarily from allegations that they were 
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associated with th~: ass,tssiMtion. but fit: did 

say he w.:~s sure we 11.1d a file on th~ man. He 

askc<f H he could have the photographs, .lnd ! 

asked ilw he could usc them. ·He said he did 

not know and fl.nally ag~eed that for the time 

being he would not press 'his- reques( •••• 

The whole meeting was extremely friendly and 

they thanked. us for our response." 

The following is extracted fran 'the Memora~um-of Record· 

by the other CIA man present, ~lr. Arthur E. DOOlEY. 

"Mr. HflSHRWALD said he knc1-1 \'lho the person 

was and had spoken to him; that the man was_ teo. 

nervous to cane forth on h·is own. FHiST[RWAlO 

would not give the man's name but said h~ is an 

American. serving a prison term in this country 

on a criminal charqe, and that he had met OSWAlD 

1 n ~lElidc.o. I a~kcd whether the pdsoner had any 

conspiratorial relationship with OS\~ALD. 

FENSTERWALD replied he did not know the answE:I" 

as he had not intervie~ed the man as yet. We 

reiterated that we did not-know who the man 

was. and . said that we wcu ld 1i ke to knN his 

Identity; FEIISTERWALD replfed that CIA has a 
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t!\i (1.. fj lc 011 tht• 1HlkllClWl1 I'!:Jn • .11\j th,1t W(' Wi JJ 

be furnisheJ hl5 111!111(~ in Jue C\~ut'"St! . " 

Mr. FENSTERWALO made no reference In his subsequent 

convers • .Hi.ons and correspondence to this' allegation about the identity 

of the "Unidentified Individual," though the claim, If true, would 

be of di r't'!'ct evidentIal l ntCI'·es t -and pos s l.b ly perml t us_ to assert 

-. ~i.th finality wh.:~t we believe has been the fact fri:m the beginning: 

the "Unidentified Man" has nothing to do with the OSWALD case at an. 

Attdchment A: Memorandum by David W. Belin to Mr. E. Harry Knoche, 
dated 15 Aprll 1975, with dttachment: "The CIA and 
the Man Who Was Not Oswald" fran the New York Review 
of Boo~, by Bernard fensterwald and GeorgcO'Toole. 

Attdcllnent B: PJges 364, 365, and 667 fnm the Warren Caranlsslon's 
report. 
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As ·you l.now,. I.e~ Harv~w Om<~alcl H<As in l\1exico City in · 
l,"ltc Septcr.lbac and .. ear.ly ·octobnr, 1963. Shortly_ after 
h~ left Hexico City n p_hqtour~ph ~tas taken of <-m 1\m'i!rican 
m.:tlo and n question \".is r<li:.;mJ \thethar or ·not this niale \·las 
Lc'-~ ll<~rvt:':'y O:>w<tld. '.l.'ho c:tn and .the Harren- Co;riais3.i.on both 
dctcnriincd· th.at the picture \-lcl~ not of Lee U;n·vuy Oswald. 
~nd. that the picture H~\s ta.kan af.tar Os>.;.ald lett Mexico· 
City • 

.l\l.though portions of thit: record have been rclc,A6t>fl t:o the 
public, other portion~; have r.cm;J.lned clnss i.ficu becilttse 
oi conccrn3 by the cin ut tho time .that ~ rclca~e of thd 
fi.tll picture might· disclose sources <:md m2'thods whlch the 
CIA felt 0erc not iri thu n~tional inter6st to disclo3e at 

._.,,;_t,hat time. In light of tho fulse ullcgations about the 
·;"::.~·,a·!:is~s::.ination of President Kunn'-ldy dnd the fulse allegations 

of CIA involver:tent, :r Icul thut :it ·t.,.ould b.:! u;:.>propriate to 
reconsider ,..,h.cthcr or not tho entire m<:tttet" C<1n be~ fully 
disclo~ed at _this ti~o. 

l \.;auld like to rcc: .. :liv<"l by 1\pril 22 n full rcpo:ct from 
the Cii\ on thi~ entirc.i rnattc.r. 

~! 3 

S.i.ncc.cely yours, 

Belin 
Executiv:.! Director 




